
Traffic Safety Committee 10-20-16  1  
 

TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2016, 8:00AM 

SELECTBOARD MEETING ROOM, MUNICIPAL CENTER 
MINUTES 

 
 
Members present:  Town Manager Peter Elwell, Fire Chief Mike Bucossi, Police Captain Mark Carignan, 
Planning Director Rod Francis, Highway/Utility Superintendent Hannah Tyler, and Citizen Representative 
Louise Zak. 
 
Selectboard Representative:  David Gartenstein. 
 
Other staff members present:  None. 
 
Others present:  Alice Charkes, Prudence MacKinney, G. DelMonico, Terry A. Carter, Kathleen White, 
Shyla Foss, and others who did not sign the attendance sheet. 
 
Town Manager Elwell called the meeting to order at 8:02am.   
 
Approve Minutes – September 15, 2016 

Elwell asked if there were any corrections to the September 15 minutes.  Alice Charkes noted that she 
was quoted on page 2, line 12, but it was not her who spoke.  It was agreed to amend the minutes and 
remove the speaker’s name.   

MOTION BY DAVID GARTENSTEIN, AND SECONDED BY LOUISE ZAK, TO APPROVE THE 
MINUTES FROM SEPTEMBER 15, AS EDITED.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Public Participation 
Terry Carter noted that she understood that the issue for which she continued to advocate in the Putney 
Road/Harris Avenue area was a long-term project involving the need to install crosswalks and sidewalks, 
but she continued to encourage the regular use of the mobile radar device in that area and to explore 
methods to create the illusion of a narrow travel area.  She also suggested posting police cars in that area 
who would ticket speeding vehicles.  She then introduced Jerry DelMonico, whom she recently met and 
who was a volunteer at Brattleboro Community Television (BCTV).  DelMonico noted that he moved with 
assistance of a cane and a scooter and he recalled some close calls that he had at crosswalks.  He 
spoke about the crosswalk on Main Street in front of the Senior Center and offered to videotape short 
segments when incidents occurred, with those short videos then to be included in the BCTV segment “It 
happens in Brattleboro” for the public to see and possibly get involved.  He also spoke about a number of 
vehicles parked in handicap parking spaces without the proper placard.  He said that he sometimes left 
notes on windshields and suggested that the Town add signs with information about fines for illegally 
parked cars.  He then mentioned the noise made by motorcycles while traveling through downtown and 
suggested enforcing the noise ordinance and posting signs indicating decibel limits.  Captain Carignan 
encouraged DelMonico to continue to leave friendly reminders on violators’ windshields or to call Parking 
Enforcement or the Police Department to issue a ticket.  Carignan said that it was difficult to enforce noise 
levels for motorcycles because PD was not able to accurately measure decibel levels, but he said the 
officers check inspection stickers on motorcycles that were stopped for other reasons.  He also 
addressed Carter’s concern about speed enforcement in the Harris Avenue/Putney Road.  There was 
some discussion by the Committee about use of the mobile radar devices and the need for repair or 
replacement of the permanent speed device on Green Street. 

Susan Rockwell reported that cars parked on Elm Street near the intersection of Elliot Street obstructed 
her view when exiting from her driveway on Elm Street.  Elwell asked DPW to review the site distances in 
that area.   

Monthly Report on Pedestrian and Bicycle Incidents – Police Captain Carignan reported that since the 
last meeting there were 60 motor vehicle collisions without injuries, 11 collisions with injuries, 2 involving 
pedestrians, and none involving bicycles.  He said that one pedestrian incident took place in a parking lot 
at an apartment complex where someone was exiting a cab and the person’s foot was run over.  He said 



Traffic Safety Committee 10-20-16  2  
 

that the pedestrian suffered minor bruising.  He said that the second pedestrian incident took place on 
Canal Street near Fairview Street at 11:30pm.  He said that two pedestrians were crossing Canal Street 
in the crosswalk and a vehicle heading north did not see the pedestrians until the driver was near the 
crosswalk and then braked aggressively.  Both pedestrians, who were dressed in dark clothing, were 
struck but suffered only minor injuries.  He said that the incident was investigated and based on the skid 
marks the vehicle’s speed was deemed reasonable.  There was some discussion by the Committee. 

Monthly Report on Traffic Data Collection.  Highway/Utility Superintendent Hannah Tyler reported that 
speed data was collected in two places.  The first location was on Guilford Street heading toward Maple 
Street near the Small Fry Field, and the posted speed limit was 25 mph, the average speed was 25.6 
mph, the 85th percentile speed was 28.6 mph, and the average volume per day was 1,018 vehicles.  She 
said that the mobile radar device was used in stealth mode.  Tyler reported that the second location was 
on Western Avenue by Academy School where the posted speed limit was a 25/30 mph split, the average 
speed was 25.4 mph, the 85th percentile speed was 29 mph, and the average volume per day was 7,300 
vehicles.  There was a brief discussion.   
 
Update re: Increased Town Funding for Bike/Ped Safety Improvements.  Elwell said that discussions 
were taking place at the staff level around several requests received to increase the financial commitment 
for safety and sidewalk improvements.  He said that the Selectboard recently asked DPW for 
recommendations for potential investments of $30,000 from the current year’s budget, which 
recommendations would likely be planned during the winter and implemented in the spring.  He said that 
staff was also preparing the FY18 budget and would suggest inclusion of additional funds to the operating 
and capital budgets, over the $5,000 per year included in the current budget, for sidewalk repair and 
replacement.  There was no discussion. 

Street and Sidewalk Safety Policy Safety Action Requests 
(a) Create a 4-Way Stop at the Intersection of Flat, Frost, and Elm Streets; Add a Crosswalk Across 
Elm Street at its Intersection with Old Elm Street.    
 
Susan Rockwell submitted the Safety Action Request form and spoke of her concerns for pedestrians 
crossing Flat/Frost Streets where they intersection with Elm Street.  She said that Elm Street was a major 
connector from Elliot Street to Canal Street across Frost and Flat Streets.  She noted that the amount and 
speed of traffic along those streets had increased.  She suggested installing a stop sign at that 
intersection for traffic traveling along Frost and Flat Streets, or possibly a flashing red/yellow light or a 
sign directing traffic to slow down.   Highway/Utilities Superintendent Tyler said that the intersection had 
been reviewed some time ago and it was determined that the intersection would require an engineer’s 
review and design, along with the need to reconfigure the physical infrastructure at the intersection.    
 
Rockwell also spoke of her safety concerns for pedestrians crossing Elm Street at the intersection of the 
two branches of Elm Street (between Elliot Street and Flat Street).  She said there was a number of 
people who crossed there and suggested installing a crosswalk for them.  She also asked for the 
installation of a “caution” sign.  Tyler reported that many pedestrians did cross at the intersection of the 
two legs of Elm Street.  She spoke of the steepness of the hill, the lack of proper site distance, and the 
curvature of the streets.  She said that installation of a crosswalk would not meet the VTrans’ safety 
standards and she did not recommend installation of a crosswalk at that location.  There was much 
discussion by the Committee about the requests, the regulatory and safety concerns, other traffic safety 
methods that could be utilized, costs, and other areas in town that would require engineering and/or 
analytical studies in order to implement improvements.   
 
MOTION BY DAVID GARTENSTEIN, AND SECONDED BY LOUISE ZAK, TO INSTALL A 
CROSSWALK AT THE ELM STREET LEG INTERSECTION.   MOTION FAILED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MOTION BY DAVID GARTENSTEIN, AND SECONDED BY LOUISE ZAK, THAT THE DEPARTMENT 
OF PUBLIC WORKS BE ASKED TO INVESTIGATE SUPPLEMENTING THE WARNINGS ON THE 
STOP SIGNS TO PROVIDE NOTICE AT THE ELM STREET/FROST/FLAT STREET INTERSECTION.  
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 



Traffic Safety Committee 10-20-16  3  
 

Elwell clarified that the above motion was for an advisory sign only - not regulatory, or yellow, or caution.  
Gartenstein agreed. 
 
MOTION BY DAVID GARTENSTEIN, AND SECONDED BY LOUISE ZAK, THAT THE TRAFFIC 
SAFETY COMMITTEE REQUESTS THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TO GENERATE AND 
PRIORITIZE AN INVENTORY OF LOCATIONS AND INTERSECTIONS WHERE ENGINEERING 
STUDIES WOULD BE USEFUL TO ADDRESS TRAFFIC SAFETY MATTERS.  MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
(b) ADA Compliance at the Intersection of Elliot Street and School Street.  Tyler said that DPW 
received a request to review ADA compliance of the intersection at Elliot Street and School Street.  She 
confirmed that the intersection was not in compliance.  She said that DPW was in the process of 
developing an inventory of crosswalks and landings that need to be brought into compliance and those 
areas would be addressed when possible or as part of another project.  Elwell said that a number of 
intersections in town were not in compliance and that special attention could be focused on specific areas 
when funds were available and proper procedures were formulated.  There was a brief discussion. 
 
Other Business 

Guilford Street and the Williams/Western Intersection will be on the agenda for the Traffic Safety 
Committee meeting on November 17, 2016.  Elwell confirmed that the following two matters would be 
included on the November 17 agenda:  (1) speed of traffic and additional measures around the Living 
Memorial Park area and Guilford Street; and (2) the traffic difficulties at the Williams Street and Western 
Avenue intersection.  He said that the two Williams Street legs, cars backing into Western Avenue at the 
Vermont Country Deli , and missing sidewalks would be discussed at the next meeting.  There was a brief 
discussion. 
 
There was no further business. 
 
MOTION BY DAVID GARTENSTEIN TO ADJOURN AT 9:16AM.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 


